
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - December 18, 2019

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI  53511
7:00 PM

Wednesday, December 18, 2019

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the December 4, 2019 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS
3.a. Consideration of a request for an exception to 34.21(2)(c) of the Architectural Review and

Landscape Code to waive the landscape strip requirement for the property located at 511
Public Avenue
Attachment

4. REPORTS

4.a. Consideration of an Underground Electrical Easement to Wisconsin Power & Light on the
property located at 1111 Elaine Drive
Attachment

4.b. Consideration of a three-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2000 Sutler Avenue
Attachment

4.c. Consideration of a one-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) to combine the properties located at
2924 Wyetta Drive and 2951 Kennedy Drive
Attachment

4.d. Appointment of a Plan Commissioner to the Greater Beloit Economic Development
Corporation (GBEDC)

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

6. ADJOURNMENT

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/492647/12-04-2019_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/494162/December_18_Staff_Report_3_a___Landscape_Exception__511_Public_Ave.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/493691/December_18_Staff_Report_4_a___RPB-2019-12__Underground_Electric_Easement__1111_Elaine_Drive.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/493661/December_18_Staff_Report_4_b___CSM-2019-16__2000_Sutler_Ave.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/494153/December_18_Staff_Report_4_c___CSM__Lyons_Magnus.pdf


Beloit Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - December 18, 2019

Page | 2

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

2



1 |  P a g e

 

 
 

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

2400 Springbrook Court, Beloit, WI  53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, December 04, 2019 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Meeting was called to order by Vice-Chairperson Weeden at 7:00PM.  Commissioners 
Finnegan, Ruster, Weeden, and Robson and Councilor Preuschl were present. 
 

2. MINUTES 
2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the November 20, 2019 Plan Commission meeting 

Motion was made by Commissioner Robson, seconded by Commissioner Finnegan to 
approve the minutes.  Motion carried, voice vote. 

 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

3.a. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment for the property located at 656 Pleasant 
Street to change the zoning from PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, to CBD-2, 
Central Business District-Fringe  
Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Vice-Chairperson Weeden opened the public hearing. 

 
Celestino Ruffini, Executive Director of Visit Beloit, introduced himself and indicated 
that he was available for questions.  Commission Robson asked about the timeline for 
the project.  Mr. Ruffini indicated that the purchase agreement between the City of 
Beloit and Visit Beloit is being delayed until January.  The rezoning is moving forward 
to City Council this month, and Angus Young & Associates is working on the plans for 
the building.  He indicated that Phase 1 is a four month process.  They anticipate 
occupying the space by the end of spring.   Phase 2 is the large addition to the south 
that will begin in the spring of 2021 and be finished in the fall. 
 
Commissioner Ruster asked about the parking to the south.  Celestino indicated that 
the parking to the south is the Heritage View parking lot, and it would remain a public 
parking lot.  He indicated that he discussed with City doing shorter-term parking south 
of their property.  Snow emergency parking will be moved as part of this project. 

3



2 |  P a g e

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Finnegan, seconded by Commissioner Robson to 
approve the Zoning Map Amendment.  Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

4. REPORTS 
4.a. Consideration of a Resolution approving a one-lot Certified Survey Map for the 

property located at 1255 Gateway Boulevard  
Community Development Director Julie Christensen presented the staff report and 
recommendation and recommended a modification of condition one.   
 
Motion was made by Commissioner Ruster and seconded by Commissioner Robson to 
approve the Certified Survey Map as amended.  Motion carried, voice vote. 
 

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Ms. Christensen explained that at Monday’s City Council meeting, the City Council held the 
public hearing and first reading on the Subdivision and Sign Ordinance Amendments. 
 
Commissioner Robson asked about the stop sign for the Burger King Development along 
the frontage road.  Julie said that she would follow up on this issue. 

 
6. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion was made by Commissioner Robson, seconded by Commissioner Ruster to adjourn 
the meeting.  Motion passed, voice vote.  Meeting was adjourned at 7:20 PM. 

 
 
Respectfully submitted by Julie Christensen 
 
 

4



ARC-EXP-2019-01, 511 Public Avenue, HCP Rowhouses

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: December 18, 2019

Agenda Item: 3(a)

File Number: ARC/EXP-2019-01

General Information

Applicant: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC

Owner: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC

Address/Location: 511 Public Avenue

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: Hendricks Commercial Properties, LLC has filed an application for an Exception
to Section 34.21(2)(c) of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code to waive the landscape strip
requirement for the property located at 511 Public Avenue.

Staff Analysis

Project Background: The subject property is the site of an approved PUD – Master Land Use Plan that
authorizes a redevelopment consisting of up to fourteen (14) row house units in two buildings, a small (2,400
SF) commercial building, and an off-street parking lot. The site plans for this redevelopment are under review.
As part of this review, the plans are evaluated against the City’s Architectural Review and Landscape Code.
Section 34.21(2)(c) of the Code requires a landscape strip along the perimeter of a commercial parking lot
adjacent to a public street. A landscape strip located between a commercial parking lot and public street must
include trees, shrubs, and other landscaping in an amount equal to 10 landscape units per linear foot of
frontage. The required number of landscape units are then achieved by planting trees (worth 225 units) and
shrubs (worth 20 points).

As shown on the attached plan, the applicant’s proposed parking lot will be adjacent to the public sidewalk
along Public Avenue, and has been proposed without landscaping adjacent to 10 parking stalls. In lieu of
revising the plans to provide a landscape strip, the applicant has elected to seek this Exception.

Existing Site Conditions: The subject property has been vacant and used as a contractor staging area with a
gravel surface since the applicant acquired it in 2016 and demolished the former church structure. The site is
1.15 acres in area and includes frontage upon Public Avenue, Pleasant Street (U.S. Hwy 51), and Bushnell
Street. The site slopes downward from the NE corner towards the SW corner.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: The Ironworks Hotel is located to the west of the subject property, and
Hotel Goodwin is located to the south. Both of these hotel properties are zoned Central Business District
(CBD). The Scoville Apartments, which is a mid-rise apartment community, lies to the east and is zoned R-4,
Moderate-Density Multifamily Residential. To the north is the Beloit College campus, which is zoned Public
Lands and Institutions (PLI).

5



ARC-EXP-2019-01, 511 Public Avenue, HCP Rowhouses

Applicant’s Hardship Argument:
According to the applicant, the project will include ample landscaping elsewhere on the property, and the
zero-setback parking is consistent with the project’s overall urban design.

Findings of Fact – Section 34.22(5) of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code states that the City
Council may grant exceptions to the regulations contained in this chapter when:

(a) Such exceptions are in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this chapter; The
intent of the landscape strip requirement is to beautify otherwise unattractive parking areas,
and to screen parked vehicles from public view. Overall, this project exemplifies excellent urban
design with buildings close to the street, parking in the rear, and public sidewalks along
Pleasant Street and Bushnell Street, including the corner of Pleasant and Public facing Hotel
Goodwin. Although the applicant is requesting a waiver of the landscape strip requirements,
they are actually providing some landscape islands at each end of the landscape strip in
question as shown on the attached landscape plan.

(b) The City Council finds that special circumstances exist involving the size, shape, topography,
location or surroundings of the property referred to in the application; The subject property is
unique in the fact that the only other property with a direct view of the landscape strip to be
waived is also owned by the applicant. Because the proposed parking lot is located behind the
proposed rowhouses and commercial building, it will not be highly visible.

(c) Denial of the exception will cause unreasonable or unnecessary hardship; Denial of the
application would force the applicant to redesign the parking lot and would eliminate a row of
parking stalls.

(d) Granting the exception will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the
vicinity nor be detrimental to the general welfare of the neighborhood or the public. Granting
the exception will not cause substantial injury to the value of nearby properties nor be
detrimental to the general welfare of the neighborhood or the public. This unique
redevelopment project is expect to have a very positive impact upon the downtown district.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of an Exception to Section 34.21(2)(c) of the
Architectural Review and Landscape Code to waive the landscape strip requirement for the property located
at 511 Public Avenue, based upon the standards for granting an exception.

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Landscape Plan & Application.

6



ARC-EXP-2019-01, 511 Public Avenue, HCP Rowhouses

Proposed Landscape
Strip Exception

7



ARC-EXP-2019-01, 511 Public Avenue, HCP Rowhouses

8



ARC-EXP-2019-01, 511 Public Avenue, HCP Rowhouses

9



ARC-EXP-2019-01, 511 Public Avenue, HCP Rowhouses

10



 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  December 18, 2019 

Agenda Item:  4.a 

File Number:  RPB-2019-12 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  Wisconsin Power & Light Co. DBA Alliant Energy 
 
Owner:  City of Beloit 
 
Address/Location:  1111 Elaine Drive 
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant has requested a 12-foot wide easement to the transformer on City owned 
property located at 1111 Elaine Drive.  
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The subject property is City owned and used for Water Utility Well #11, a 0.53-acre 
parcel located on the corner of Elaine Drive and Weiser Road.  
 
Easement Area: The proposed easement will allow the applicant to install a new underground electric line 
from the transformer pad to the right-of-way. An existing electric line will be retired. As shown on the 
attached map, the proposed easement is a 12 x 47 foot rectangle that measures from the right-of-way along 
Wesier Road to the transformer which is located on the west side of Water Utility Well #11. This easement 
also include the area around the transformer pad (the easement is located in pink on the attachment map) 
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Future Land Use Map recommends Institutional 
and Community Services land uses. This request supports Strategic Goal #5 by creating and sustaining high 
quality infrastructure and connectivity. 
 
Additional Comments: The Engineering Division and Water Resources have both reviewed the easement and 
have no comments.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Underground Electric 
Easement across part of the City-owned property located at 1111 Elaine Drive. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Proposed Easement, and Easement Exhibits 

11



12



 

13



 

14



 

15



 
 

16



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue  

 
 

 
REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  December 18, 2019 

Agenda Item:  4.b. 

File Number:  CSM-2019-16 

 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  R. H. Batterman & Co., Inc. 
 
Owner:  Morgan Square LLC  
 
Address/Location:  2000 Sutler Avenue  
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant has proposed a 3-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
property located at 2000 Sutler Avenue in the City of Beloit.   
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The area covered by this CSM contains a vacant big box store, strip mall, 
and a large parking lot.  This development was approved as a PUD, Planned Unit Development.  

Proposed Land Division: Proposed Lot 1 will be 293,689 square feet and will contain the 
existing retail strip mall and parking lot.  Proposed Lot 2 will be 101,088 square feet and will 
contain the former Staples building and parking lot. Proposed Lot 3 will be 22,638 square feet 
and set up for a future build out. 
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  There are commercial uses zoned C-3, Community 
Commercial and PUD, Planned Unit Development Districts to the east and south of the subject 
property. To the west is the vacant Morgan School building zoned PLI, Public Lands and 
Institutions District. To the north is a housing development zoned PUD, Public Lands and 
Institutions.     
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan: The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends Community Commercial Use for the subject property. The proposed land 
division is consistent with this recommendation. This request supports Strategic Goal #3 by 
creating economic growth. 
 
Municipal Utilities:  The subject property is served by municipal utilities.  

17



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue  

 
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) was sent to the City of 
Beloit Staff and Utility Contacts who provided the following comments: 
 
AT&T: AT&T states they have facilities along Sutler Avenue and any request to relocate AT&T 
facilities may be compensable.  
 
Alliant Energy: Alliant has no conflicts but noted they have service to the existing pole sign on 
proposed Lot 2.  
 
Fire Department: The Fire Department would like to maintain a clear fire access road around 
the whole site. They have suggested an easement across properties or a statement of intent to 
maintain clear fire/emergency access to all properties, or some other means to ensure that 
parking, curbs, structures, or other impediments to travel are not allowed. The FDC, Fire 
Department Connection, must be relocated and code compliant.   
 
Water Resources: Water Resources stated proposed Lot 3 is not currently served by sanitary 
sewer. The developer will have to install sewer at their cost. A long lateral to the south side of 
Milwaukee may be possible. A map of existing public utilities is attached.  
 
Engineering:   

• The Engineering Division states sanitary sewer service for the former Staples building (Lot 2) 
currently drains in a private sewer service behind the strip mall on Lot 1 and then crosses 
under the strip mall and drains to the east out to Sutler Ave. between Culvers and 
Applebees.  If this CSM was approved and Lot 2 was created then this private sewer service 
would automatically become a public sewer main.  This is not acceptable.  In order for Lot 2 
to be created, the sewer service for the former Staples building would need to be 
disconnected from the strip mall and routed in a new sewer service to public sanitary 
sewer.   

• There is an existing watermain across lots 1 and 2 located behind the strip mall that is not in 
an easement.  A City Utility Easement needs to be provided for this watermain. 

• The 90 degree turn in Sutler Ave. adjacent to the northeast corner of Lot 2 has long had 
traffic issues with vehicles speeding through the parking lot to the north and not yielding to 
vehicles traveling in the right-of-way.  Prior to approval of a CSM the access driveways in 
this area would need to be re-worked to address this issue.  A potential solution may be to 
install curb around the 90 degree turn, depress the curb at the access points and install stop 
signs for the access points.   

  

18



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 3-Lot Certified 
Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 2000 Sutler Avenue in the City of Beloit, subject 
to the following conditions: 
 

1. The final CSM must include a utility easement for the watermain that runs through Lot 1 
and 2 along the west property line.  

2. The issues raised by Engineering and the Fire Department must be resolved prior to 
recording the CSM.  

3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Preliminary Certified Survey Map, Review Agent Comments, 
Application, and Resolution

19



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

 
20



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

 
21



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

 

22



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

23



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

24



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

25



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

26



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

27



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue   

28



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue  

 
RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A THREE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 
FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

2000 SUTLER AVENUE 
 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2000 
Sutler Avenue, containing 9.58 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City 
of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
three-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

OF LOT 4 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NO. 1382044 AS 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 21 OF CERTIFEID SURVEY MAPS, PAGES 322-
325, BEING PART OF THE SW ¼  OF THE SW ¼ OF SECTION 20 AND 
PART OF THE NW ¼ OF THE NW ¼ AND PART OF THE NE ¼ OF THE NW 
¼ OF SECTION 29 ALL IN T. 1 N., R. 13 E., OF THE 4TH P.M., SITUATED IN 
PART OF LOTS 4 AND 5 OF MORGAN FARM, CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK 
COUNTY WISONSIN. (ALSO KNOW AS 2000 SUTLER AVENUE). SAID 
PARCEL CONTAINS 9.58 ACRES, MORE OR LESS 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached three-lot Certified Survey Map for the 
property located at 2000 Sutler Avenue, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The final CSM must include a utility easement for the watermain that runs through 
Lot 1 and 2 along the west property line.  

2. The issues raised by Engineering and the Fire Department must be resolved prior to 
recording the CSM.  

3. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

29



CSM-2019-19, 2000 Sutler Avenue  

 
 

Adopted this 18th day of December, 2019. 
 
 
  _ 
 James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 
 
 
 

30



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: December 18, 2019

Agenda Item: 4(c)

File Number: CSM-2019-11

General Information

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc.
Owner: TRU Beloit Properties, LLC
Address/Location: 2924 Wyetta Dr. & 2951 Kennedy Dr.
Applicant’s Request: 1-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) to Combine Parcels*

Staff Analysis

Background Info: This request involves review of a 1-Lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the
properties located at 2924 Wyetta Drive & 2951 Kennedy Drive. The intent of this CSM is to
combine/consolidate these parcels in advance of a major building addition that will ultimately
connect the existing buildings. A preliminary site plan is attached.

Project Details: Proposed Lot 1 is 5.63 acres in area and includes a total of six existing
driveways, two existing buildings, loading docks/areas, and off-street parking lots. Since there
will be two buildings on proposed Lot 1 at the time of approval and only one principal building
is permitted per zoning lot, Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval that will
require approval of the site plans for the building addition before the CSM may be recorded.

*CSM Revised for 12/18/19 Meeting to Provide Sidewalk Easement: As part of the site plan
review process, the City Engineer has required public sidewalks around the property. A portion
of the public sidewalk does not fit in the right-of-way, and requires an easement as shown on
the attached, revised CSM. The CSM was originally approved on September 4, 2019.

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan: The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land
Use Map recommends General Industrial for the subject properties. This request supports
Strategic Goal #3 by creating economic growth.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached 1-Lot Certified
Survey Map (CSM) for the properties located at 2924 Wyetta Drive & 2951 Kennedy Drive in the
City of Beloit, subject to the following condition:

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. The CSM
may not be recorded until site plans for the building addition have been approved.

ATTACHMENTS: Preliminary Site Plan, Certified Survey Map, Application, and Resolution.
31



32



33



34



RESOLUTION
APPROVING A ONE-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP

FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT
2924 WYETTA DRIVE & 2951 KENNEDY DRIVE

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor
subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the City; and

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the properties located at 2924
Wyetta Drive & 2951 Kennedy Drive, containing 5.63 acres, is located within the jurisdiction of
the City of Beloit; and

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land:

LOT 3 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NO. 1013879, AND RE-
RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 1043820; AND LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP DOCUMENT NO. 1087937; BEING PART OF LOT 8 OF
BELOIT INDUSTRIAL PARK I-90; BEING SITUATED IN PART OF THE SW
¼ OF THE NE ¼ OF SECTION 29, T. 1 N., R. 13 E. OF THE 4TH P.M., CITY
OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of
Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for the
properties located at 2924 Wyetta Drive & 2951 Kennedy Drive, subject to the following
condition:

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division.
The CSM may not be recorded until site plans for the building addition have been
approved.

Adopted this 18th day of December, 2019.

_
James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairman

ATTEST:

Julie Christensen,
Community Development Director

35


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-1957 - Attachment
	2018-1958 - Attachment
	2018-1946 - Attachment
	2018-1959 - Attachment
	2018-1960 - Attachment

